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Narragansett Bay Commission

Mission Statement

“To maintain a leadership role in the protection and
enhancement of water quality in Narragansett Bay
and its tributaries by providing safe and reliable
wastewater collection and treatment services to its
customers at a reasonable cost.”

Newport Bridge Sunset
Photo by: Alisha D’Ambrosio-Grandin



blank.




ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

Table of Contents
June 30, 2022
Introductory Section
REC T g T =] = o <] U URURRROt 1-4
GFOA Certificate Of ACHIEVEMENT.....coiiiiiiiecee ettt e st e e e sabe e sabe e sabeesateesabeesabeesbaesnsseesnbeesnns 5
List of Appointed Officials - Board of COMMISSIONEIS ........uviiiiiiieiiiiee ettt e eee e st e e e bre e e e earee e e saaeeeeeanees 6
(@15 ==Y a1 V2= ) 4 (o a0l o - o AP U SPRN 7
SBIVICE AT VAP ittt ettt bt bt bt bt b et e bn seeeeeeaeaeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeens 8
Financial Section
TaTo =T o=YaTo [=T oY YU Lo L] oY o 2{=T Lo o PSR 9-12
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (UNaUdited) .......ccoecviieiiiiiie ittt e et e et eaaee e 13-21
Basic Financial Statements
Business-Type Activity:
1= g g L=l 0 Ao LT A oo 1 1 o o S SOTSRTR 23-24
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net POSItiON ........ccoociiiiiiiiiie et 25
StAteMENT OF CASN FIOWS ..coeviiiiiiiiee ettt ettt sttt s be e e s be e sbe e e ba e e sateesabaesbeeesaseesaseens 26-27
Fiduciary Activity:
Statement of FIdUCIAry NEt POSIHION......ciiciiiiiiiiie ettt rree e s e e e bae e e s sabe e e s esbeeeesaneeas 28
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net POSItION ....cccvviiiiiiiii ettt aae e e 29
NOES tO FINANCIAl STAtEMENTS ..eeiiiiiiiiieeiee ettt et e e s be e sbeeesabeesabeessbeesbaeesabaesabeesnses 30-65
Required Supplementary Information (Unaudited)
Schedule of NBC’s Proportionate Share of the Net Pension Liability - Employees’ Retirement
SYSTEIM Rl ettt e et e et e teteteeeeeeeaeaaaeeeeeeeeaeaeaeeeeeeseeeeesesesesesnsssens vrusessssserenes 66-67
Schedule of NBC’s Contributions - Employees’ Retirement System Rl ........coovciiieiiiiieiiciiie e, 68-69
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information - Employees’ Retirement System Rl ...........ccceeeeiveennes 70-71
Schedule of Changes in Net Pension Liability (Asset) and Related Ratios - Non-Union Defined
2T o= A o 1= o PRSP 72-75
Schedule of Employer Contributions - Non-Union Defined Benefit Plan.......ccccccoecvviveeeieeeiciineeeee e, 76-77
Schedule of Investment Returns - Non-Union Defined Benefit Plan........ccccoveiieiiiiiiiiccciee e 78
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information - Non-Union Defined Benefit Plan.........cccccceeveeiveveeeeennnnns 79
Schedule of the NBC’s Proportionate Share of the Net OPEB Liability - State Employees’ and Electing
Teachers OPEB SYStEM Plan........uiii ittt ettt e e et te e e s st e e e e abee e e ebaee e eeabeeeesntaeeesaneeas 80
Schedule of NBC’s Contributions - State Employees’ and Electing Teachers OPEB System Plan..........cccccce... 81
Notes to the Required Supplementary Information - State Employees’ and Electing Teachers OPEB
) (] 1 P P P P P PP PP PP PP P PU T PR UNUNURORPRORPRPRORt 82-83
Other Supplementary Information
Schedule of Operating Budget Revenues - Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) ......cccoccveeeviieeeiiciee e, 84
Schedule of Operating Budget Expenses - Budget and Actual (Budgetary Basis) ......ccccceecuveeeeeirieeeccieeeeennnen, 85-87
Combining Schedule Of NET POSITION ....cc.iiiiiiie et e e e e sre e e e ate e e e s bte e e e sabaeeeeanees 88-91
Combining Schedule of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net POSItion ........ccccccveveciieeiciieeeccieee e, 92-93
Schedule of LONG-DiStanCe TraVel.........eiiiuiiiiiiiie ettt e e e e e e be e e s et e e e e abee e e seaaeeeesnntaeeennsenas 94
Statistical Section (Unaudited)
Y LA o] Y =T ot 4o o TSP PSU U TSTPR 95
oYl o 14 o] g T o VA @e T 0] o Yo o 1=1 | AN 96-97
Changes IN N POSITION ....ciiiiiiie it e e e e e e et e e e e e tae e e eataeeeebaeeeesabeaeeassaeeesnsaeesannss senrenas 98-99
AT o TN o)V U o Vot o T o [ RPN 100-101
o1 Y=Y o V2 51V Vot T o TP UUR USRS 102-103

User FEe ReVENUES DY CUSTOMET TYPE ... i e ettt e e et ree e e e e e s rbtae e e e e e s esnabteeeeeeeesannssaaeeeessansnstnneeeesesnnsnnnnes 104



ANNUAL COMPREHENSIVE FINANCIAL REPORT

Table of Contents
June 30, 2022
Statistical Section (Unaudited)(Continued)
e (o L A = IS =Tl 1 L (T SPPRTTR 105
NON-RESIAENTIAI SEWEE RATES ....uvvvviiiiiiiiiiiiiiiiee ettt eeeree e e e et eesbtbe e e e e e eeesabaaeeeeeeeeesstasereeeeeeassbaseeesessannsssrees oan 106
Comparative 2020 Annual Residential Sewer Rates - RI MUNicipalities ........cccccvvveeieiieiieiiiee e 107
PrinCipal COMMEICIAl USEI'S .....uvviiiiiiie ettt ee ettt ettt e e et e e e s tte e e e e bbeeesabaeeeensbaee e e sbaeeeassteeeensaeeeannsaeeeanssne nbees 109
(2 I To T o) A OIU) & w=TaTo [T o = a1 D= ] PSP 110-111
[DL] o] AT =T AV Toll @e V=T o =TSR SPP 112-113
(DL gL d T o] a1 Tol Y = 41y 4 oSSR 114
T e Yol o =T I = g Y o1 [0} =] 3SR 115
Operating INdicators DY DIVISION ......ccuiiiiiciiiee ittt e e sttt e e s st e e e seataeessbteeessbeeeesastaeessasseeessseeessansneessnns 116
Budgeted EMPIOYEES DY ACHIVITY ..oeeiieeiiiieie ettt e e e e e sttt e e e e e e e e eaabae e e e e e e esnbbaaeeeeeeeenannraaeeaaaeas 117

Compliance Section
Independent Auditor’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and
Other Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government

P Lo [ Y = [ Lo =Y o K 119-120



The Narragansett Bay Commission Vincent J. Mesolella

One Service Road Chairman

Providence, RI 02905

(401) 461-8848 Laurie Horridge

(401) 461-6540 FAX Executive Director
?gaﬂsetr Bay Co‘o

September 29, 2022

To the Chairman and the Commissioners of the Narragansett Bay Commission:

We are pleased to transmit the Annual Comprehensive Financial Report of the Narragansett Bay
Commission (NBC) for the fiscal year that ended June 30, 2022. NBC staff prepared this Annual
Comprehensive Financial Report following the guidelines set forth by the Governmental Accounting
Standards Board (GASB). Management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of
the information contained in this report, based upon a comprehensive framework of internal controls
established for this purpose. Because the cost of internal controls should not exceed anticipated
benefits, the objective is to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance that the financial
statements are free of any material misstatements.

NBC is subject to independent audit per Section 35-6-37 of the Rhode Island General Laws (RIGL) and is
required to submit audited financial statements to the state controller no later than ninety (90) days after
the close of each fiscal year. This report is published to fulfill that requirement for the fiscal year ended
June 30, 2022.

Bacon and Company CPAs, LLC, NBC’s Independent Auditor, has issued an unmodified (“clean”) opinion
on the NBC’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 (see page 9). Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) follows the Independent Auditor’s Report and provides an introduction,
overview, and analysis of the financial statements in a narrative format. The MD&A complements and
should be read in conjunction with this letter of transmittal.

Profile of the Narragansett Bay Commission

NBC is a public corporation incorporated in 1980 pursuant to Rhode Island General Laws Chapter 46-25
to provide wastewater treatment and collection service to the greater Providence metropolitan area. On
January 1, 1992, the former Blackstone Valley District Commission was merged into NBC, expanding the
service area to include the greater Pawtucket metropolitan area. NBC provides services to approximately
390,000 residents and 7,700 businesses. NBC funds its operation and maintenance expenses as well as
debt service through user charges and fees.



Wastewater Treatment and Sustainability

NBC owns, operates, and maintains Rhode Island’s two largest wastewater treatment facilities. The Field’s
Point Wastewater Treatment Facility (WWTF), located in Providence, provides advanced wastewater
treatment for dry weather flows of up to 65 million gallons per day (MGD) and primary treatment and
disinfection for flows up to 200 MGD. The Bucklin Point WWTF, located in East Providence, provides
secondary treatment and nitrogen removal for flows of up to 46 MGD and primary treatment and
disinfection for flows up to 116 MGD. In addition, NBC owns, operates, and maintains 80 miles of
interceptors, six outlying pump stations, 32 tide-gates, and 61 combined sewer overflows (CSOs). The
Tunnel Pump Station, adjacent to the Ernest Street Pump Station at Field’s Point, pumps stored combined
sewage flow from the CSO tunnel to the Field’s Point WWTF for treatment. The NBC also owns and
operates a septage receiving facility in Lincoln.

NBC is also committed to sustainability as demonstrated by its investment in renewable energy. NBC
owns and operates six 1.5-megawatt (MW) wind turbines that generate electricity which is used on-site
and/or is net-metered. In addition, NBC has executed two Power Purchase Agreements for net-metered
renewable energy sources. These projects are part of NBC’s goal of meeting 100% of energy needs from
renewable sources.

Governance

NBC is governed by a nineteen-member Board of Commissioners (Board). Ten public members are
appointed by the Governor, two by the Mayor of the City of Providence, one each by the Mayors of the
Towns of North Providence, Johnston, and Cumberland, one each by the Mayors of the Cities of East
Providence, Central Falls and Pawtucket and one by the Town Administrator of Lincoln. Board member
appointments are for three years after which appointed members stay in office until they are either re-
appointed or replaced by a new member. The Board’s Chairperson, Vice-Chairperson and Treasurer are
elected annually by the Board and the Chairperson is NBC’s Chief Executive Officer. The Board-appointed
Executive Director, who also serves as Secretary to the Board, administers, manages, and directs the
affairs and business of NBC subject to the policies, control, and direction of the Board. The Board,
through the Executive Director, may appoint other employees.

NBC is regulated by the Rhode Island Public Utilities Commission (PUC). Accordingly, both the Board and
the PUC must authorize adjustments to sewer user rates. The Division of Public Utilities and Carriers must
approve NBC entering into a debt obligation with a term greater than one year.

NBC’s financial statements are not included in the State of Rhode Island’s annual financial report since
NBC is a related organization rather than a component unit of the State for financial reporting purposes.

NBC’s Board approves the annual budget which includes both the operating and capital budgets. The
operating budget is prepared on a modified cash basis. A line-item operating budget is maintained for
the cost centers in each Division. The appropriate Division Director must approve budget transfers prior
to approval by the Chief Financial Officer (CFO). The CFO authorizes adjustments (transfers) between
operating budget line items within categories and adjustments between cost centers as well as changes
to the operating capital budget. The budget transfers are included as part of the monthly financial report
reviewed and approved by the Finance Committee prior to the regularly scheduled Board meetings.



Local Economy

The NBC services approximately 41% of the total population of Rhode Island. Of the eight major
communities serviced by NBC, Providence, Pawtucket, Cumberland, and North Providence account for
the majority or 79% of NBC’s accounts. NBC’s user fee revenues are relatively stable with NBC’s 10 largest
users responsible for 8.59% of the billed user fee revenues in FY 2022. NBC’s largest customers include
government, education, and healthcare providers.

According to the Rhode Island Department of Economic Development, the economic base of Rhode Island
has continued to shift from manufacturing to service industries over the last decade. It is important to
note that one of the primary service industries in Rhode Island is tourism, which is largely focused on
recreational activities in and around Narragansett Bay. Employment in Rhode Island reflects the national
trend towards higher employment in the services sector.

Based on Rhode Island Department of Labor and Training data, the Rhode Island unemployment rate
decreased from 5.8% in June 2021 to 2.7% in June 2022. The Rhode Island median household income has
exceeded the national median household income the last ten years.

In response to COVID-19, the PUC ordered the suspension of the assessment of late fees, interest charges,
as well as electronic payment transaction fees (credit card, debit card and ACH fees) effective June 1,
2020. Effective February 15,2022 the PUC allowed the reinstatement of late fees. On January 19, 2022,
NBC filed an application with the PUC to include electronic payment transaction fees in the cost of service
and recover electronic payment transaction fees incurred between April 1, 2020 and the effective date of
the new tariffs. A 0.56% across-the-board rate increase was approved by the PUC effective May 1, 2022.
In addition, the PUC authorized the transfer of $742,801 from the Stabilization account in the Debt Service
Fund to the Operations and Maintenance Fund for previously incurred electronic payment transaction
fees.

Major Initiatives

NBC’s Capital Improvement Program (CIP) identifies 45 projects that are in progress, being initiated or to
be completed during FY 2024-2028 at an estimated cost of $562.0 million, with additional expenditures
of $220.0 million in FY 2023 for total of $782.0 million. The majority or 72% of the expenditures are for
the Combined Sewer Overflow (CSO) Phase Il A Facilities which are part of the third and final phase of
the mandated CSO Abatement Program. The CSO Phase Ill A Facilities consist of 13 separate construction
projects; however, two projects were rolled into other projects reducing the number to eleven and three
projects have been completed. This year’s CIP includes $403.9 million in fiscal years 2024-2028 with an
additional $173.3 million in FY 2023 for a total of $577.2 million over the six-year period. Other significant
capital initiatives include the Bucklin Point Resiliency Improvements at $12.7 million and the Field’s Point
Resiliency Improvements at $88.4 million.

Since FY 2020, NBC’s primary capital funding source has been the Water Infrastructure Finance and
Innovation Act (WIFIA) loan program administered by the United States Environmental Protection Agency
(USEPA). NBC applied for a third WIFIA loan to fund a portion of the Field’s Point Resiliency
Improvements. NBC also executed a $45.0 million loan through the Rhode Island Infrastructure Bank
(RIIB) on November 16, 2021 that included $1.0 millon in principal forgiveness.



Long-term Financial Planning

NBC updates and maintains a long-term financial model to assess the impacts of current and future
operating and capital requirements. The model is used to develop and support financing strategies that
will provide stability, continuity, and minimize ratepayer impact. NBC incorporates the five-year CIP into
the model and annually updates the CIP and prioritizes projects based upon strategic importance. Since
the CIP is financed primarily through the issuance of long-term debt, the capital program’s primary
impact on the operating budget is the payment of the associated principal and interest. In addition, NBC
identifies capital improvements that will impact the operating budget through increased revenues,
increased expenses, or savings. NBC also prepares a five-year operating capital plan with needs identified
primarily through NBC’s asset management plan.

Awards and Acknowledgements

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) of the United States and Canada awarded a
Certificate of Achievement for Excellence in Finance Reporting to NBC for its Annual Report for the fiscal
year ended June 30, 2021. This was the twentieth consecutive year that NBC has received this prestigious
award. To be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, NBC issued an easily readable and efficiently
organized Annual Report that satisfied both generally accepted accounting principles and applicable legal
requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe that our current Annual
Report meets the high standards of the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirement, and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

In addition, NBC received the GFOA’s Distinguished Budget Presentation Award for the twentieth
consecutive year for its annual budget document for the FY 2022 Budget. NBC was also awarded Special
Capital Recognition. To qualify for the Distinguished Budget Presentation Award, the budget document
must meet program criteria as a policy document, as financial plan, as an operations guide, and as a
communication device. This award is valid for a period of one year only.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient and dedicated services
of the entire staff of NBC’s Division of Finance. Credit must also be given to the Chairman and the Board
of Commissioners for their unfailing support for maintaining the highest standards of professionalism in
the management of NBC’s finances.

Respectfully Submitted,

Karen L. Giebink, MBA Leah E. Foster, CPA
—A . =
Chief Financial Officer Controller
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Board of Commissioners

Narragansett Bay Commission (NBC) is governed by a Board of Commissioners
(Board). The Board represents the municipalities in the service area,
as well as ten gubernatorial appointments. Empowered with
responsibilities ranging from ensuring that NBC operates a balanced budget
to approving contracts for improving and sustaining the treatment facilities
and wastewater collection system, the Board meets monthly to guide the
direction of NBC.

Vincent J. Mesolella, Chairman
Angelo S. Rotella, Esq., Vice Chairman
Robert P. Andrade, Treasurer

Ernest Almonte, CPA Leonard Lopes, Esq.
Lisa M. Andoscia John MacQueen
James S. Bennett Michael Marcello, Esq.
Michele L. Caprio Joan P. Milas
Mario G. Carlino Alessandro Montanari
Richard Delfino Anthony Napolitano
Michelle R. DeRoche Jina Petrarca, Esq.
Christine DiBiase, Esq. Charles A. Ruggerio, Esq.

Laurie Horridge, Executive Director and Secretary of the Board

Sunset over the Claiborne Pell Bridge, Newport Rhode Island
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Service Area

NBC provides reliable, cost-effective wastewater collection and treatment services to over 395,000 residents
and approximately 7,700 businesses in the metropolitan Providence and Blackstone Valley areas. These
communities include Providence, North Providence, Johnston, Pawtucket, Central Falls, Cumberland, Lincoln,
the northern portion of East Providence and small sections of Cranston and Smithfield.

The State of Rhode Island is 1,097.0 square miles and NBC’s service area is 70.8 square miles or 6.5%. The map
below shows NBC's service area.

and

Central Falls

North Providence Pawtucket

East Providence

Cranston

Narragansett Bay Commission
District Service Area
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CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
875 Centerville Road, Building 3, Unit 10 * Warwick, RI 028586
(401) 586-6565 * Fax (401} 826-1710

Independent Auditor's Report

To the Board of Commissioners
Narragansett Bay Commission
Providence, Rhode Island

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements
Opinions

We have audited the financial statements of the business-type activities and fiduciary activities of
the Narragansett Bay Commission (NBC), as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which collectively comprise the NBC’s basic financial
statements as listed in the table of contents.

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the respective financial position of the business-type activities and fiduciary
activities of the NBC, as of June 30, 2022, and the respective changes in financial position, and,
where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then ended in accordance with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America (GAAS) and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in
Government Auditing Standards (Government Auditing Standards), issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the
Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are
required to be independent of the NBC and to meet our other ethical responsibilities, in accordance
with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinions.

Emphasis of Matter

As discussed in Note 17 to the financial statement, the NBC implemented GASB Statement No.
84 Fiduciary Activities, during fiscal year 2021, which resulted in the restatement of the beginning
fiduciary net position of the Non-Union Defined Benefit Plan in fiscal year 2022 to correct the
prior year omission of the Non-Union Defined Benefit Plan as a fiduciary component unit in the
financial statements. Our opinions were not modified with respect to this matter.



As discussed in Notes 1 and 8 to the financial statements, the NBC implemented GASB Statement
No. 87, Leases, during fiscal year 2022. Our opinions were not modified with respect to this matter.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements
in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America,
and for the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation
and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are
conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the NBC’s
ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date,
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS and
Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting
from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial
likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a
reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS and Government Auditing Standards, we
o exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

e identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks.
Such procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements.

e obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing
an opinion on the effectiveness of the NBC’s internal control. Accordingly, no such
opinion is expressed.

e evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall
presentation of the financial statements.
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e conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the
aggregate, thatraise substantial doubtaboutthe NBC’s ability to continue as a going concern
for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other
matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal
control related matters that we identified during the audit.

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
Management’s Discussion and Analysis and supplementary pension and other post- employment
other than pension information be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such
information is the responsibility of management and, although not a part of the basic financial
statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be
an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate
operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied certain limited procedures to the
required supplementary information in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America, which consisted of inquiries of management about the methods of
preparing the information and comparing the information for consistency with management's
responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other knowledge we obtained during
our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an opinion or provide any assurance
on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to
express an opinion or provide any assurance.

Supplementary Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the NBC’s basic financial statements. The schedule of operating budget
revenues-budget to actual, schedule of operating budget expenses- budget to actual, combining schedule of
net position, combining schedule of revenues, expenses and changes in net position, and schedule of long
distance travel are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the
basic financial statements. Such information is the responsibility of management and was derived
from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare the basic
financial statements. The information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the
audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional procedures, including comparing and
reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting and other records used to prepare
the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements themselves, and other additional
procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. In our opinion, the schedule of operating budget revenues, schedule of operating budget
expenses, combining schedule of net position, combining schedule of revenues, expenses and changes in net
position, and schedule of long distance travel are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

Other Information
Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other

information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic
financial statements and our auditor's report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements

11



do not cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and
the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement
of the other information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
September 29, 2022 on our consideration of the NBC’s internal control over financial
reporting and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts,
and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope
of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that
testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the NBC’s internal control over
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering NBC’s internal control over
financial reporting and compliance.

Bacon & &W ChAz, LLL

Warwick, Rhode Island
September 29, 2022
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Narragansett Bay Commission
Management’s Discussion and Analysis (Unaudited)
June 30, 2022

NBC’s Management offers readers of the basic financial statements, this narrative overview and
analysis of NBC for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022 (FY 2022). Readers are encouraged to
consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that is
furnished in the letter of transmittal.

Financial Highlights

From a financial perspective, FY 2022 was a strong year for NBC. The following are the key
financial highlights:

e NBC's assets and deferred outflows of resources exceeded its liabilities and deferred inflows
of resources at the close of the fiscal year by $617,964,138. Of this amount, $4,456,158 is
unrestricted net position.

e NBC's total net position increased by $27,697,835 or 4.7% over the prior year.

e NBC finished FY 2022 under budget for expenses by $4,348,460. The majority of the
favorable variance is from personnel services, chemicals, electricity, biosolids, wind turbine
expense and interest expense.

e Debt service coverage calculated as gross revenues, minus operating expenses exclusive of
depreciation and amortization, divided by total debt service was 1.56 in FY 2022, exceeding
the 1.25 debt service coverage level recommended by credit rating agencies.

e NBC realized a savings of $358,363 in FY 2022 resulting from Rhode Island Infrastructure
Bank (RIIB) refundings. NBC will recognize total savings of $4,369,070 over the life of the
loans due to these refundings.

e NBC accounts receivable (net of allowance) increased from $12,816,471 to $13,115,084
from FY 2021 to FY 2022, respectively. This is a $298,613 or 2.33% increase.

e The Non-Union Defined Benefit Plan is funded at 108.89%, which results in a net pension
asset of $2.2 million on the Statement of Net Position. The Employees’ Retirement System
of the State of Rhode Island (ERSRI) Defined Benefit Plan is funded at 63.2% which results in
a net pension liability — ERSRI Pension Plan of $14.6 million on the Statement of Net
Position.

e NBC implemented GASB 87 Leases. NBC has wind turbines that are located on two land
leases.

13



e RIIB refunded debt that resulted in a gain of $2.6 million which will be amortized over the
remaining life of the loans.

e NBC executed a $45.0 million loan through the RIIB on November 16, 2021 that included
$1.0 millon in principal forgiveness.

Overview of the Financial Statements

Management’s discussion and analysis is intended as an introduction to NBC's basic financial
statements, which consist of the financial statements and notes to financial statements. In
addition to the basic financial statements, this report also provides other required and
supplementary information.

The financial statements report information about NBC based upon an accrual accounting
method similar to those used by private sector companies. The basic financial statements
include a Statement of Net Position, Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net
Position, Statement of Cash Flows and Notes to Financial Statements.

The Statement of Net Position presents information of NBC’s assets, liabilities, and deferred
inflows/outflows of resources, with the difference reported as net position. Over time, increases
or decreases in net position may serve as a useful indicator of whether the financial position of
NBC is improving or deteriorating.

All the current year’s revenues and expenses are accounted for in the Statement of Revenues,
Expenses and Changes in Net Position. This statement measures the success of NBC's
operations over the past year and can be used to determine whether NBC has recovered all its
costs through its user fees and other charges.

The last required financial statement is the Statement of Cash Flows. The purpose of this
statement is to provide information about the changes in cash and cash equivalents, resulting
from operating, capital and related financing, non-capital financing and investing activities. This
statement presents cash receipts and cash disbursement information, without consideration of
the earnings event, when an obligation arises, or depreciation of assets.

The notes to financial statements provide additional information that is essential for a full
understanding of the data provided in the statements.

Financial Analysis — Statement of Net Position
Net position over time may serve as a useful indicator of a government’s financial position. In

the case of NBC, assets plus deferred outflows of resources exceeded the liabilities plus
deferred inflows of resources by $617,964,138 as of June 30, 2022.
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Condensed Statement of Net Position

Assets
Current assets
Noncurrent assets
Restricted assets
Net capital assets
Other assets
Total assets

Deferred outflows of resources
Deferred outflows of resources

Total deferred outflows resources

Liabilities

Current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities
Total liabilities

Deferred inflows of resources
Deferred inflows of resources
Total deferred inflows resources

Net position
Net investment in capital assets
Restricted for environmental enforcement
Restricted for bond covenants
Restricted operating reserve for revenue

stability fund
Restricted for debt service reserve
Restricted for operating capital
Unrestricted

Total net position

FY 2022 FY 2021

318,369,805 S 424,187,569
94,826,129 77,987,362
1,289,827,515 1,132,898,591
2,183,820 6,797,195
1,705,207,269 1,641,870,717
12,677,469 9,955,355
12,677,469 9,955,355
80,846,678 58,887,233
1,010,597,795 995,549,763
1,091,444,473 1,054,436,996
8,476,127 7,122,775
8,476,127 7,122,775
527,168,331 517,866,217
59,508 74,068
67,265,617 61,740,095
4,507,306 4,500,459
2,967,686 2,963,177
11,539,532 6,230,100
4,456,158 (3,107,815)
617,964,138 S 590,266,301

The Condensed Statement of Net Position above reflects a decrease in current assets of $105.8
million from FY 2021 to FY 2022. This is the net of a reduction in Water Infrastruction Finance
Innovation Act (WIFIA) loan receivable and a $1.0 million increase in RIIB receivable.

15



In FY 2022, NBC’s restricted assets of $94,826,129 consisted of the following:

Cash and cash equivalents, for environmental enforcement fund S 59,508
Cash and cash equivalents, bond covenants 67,265,617
Cash and cash equivalents, debt service reserve fund 2,967,686
Cash and cash equivalents, grant and project reimbursement 8,486,480
Cash and cash equivalents, operating reserve for revenue stability fund 4,507,306
Cash and cash equivalents, operating capital 11,539,532

S 94,826,129

The Condensed Statement of Net Position shows an increase in net capital assets of $156.9
million from FY 2021 to FY 2022. This increase reflects FY 2022 investments in capital
improvements and leased land, less related accumulated depreciation and amortization.
Construction in progress increased $131.6 million. This increase is due to additions of $172.8
million and the reclassification of $41.2 million from construction in progress to completed
projects.

Other assets on the Condensed Statement of Net Position decreased by $4.6 million which is a
result of a decrease in the net pension asset of the non-union defined benefit plan.

From FY 2021 to FY 2022, total deferred outflows of resources increased by $2.7 and total
deferred inflows of resources increased by $1.4. The increase in deferred outflows is a result of
the GASB 68 pension entries, GASB 75 other post-employment benefits (OPEB) entries, and
GASB 83 Asset retirement obligation. The increase in deferred inflows is the result of the GASB
68 pension entries, GASB 75 other post-employment benefits (OPEB) entries, and a gain on
refunding debt.

Current liabilities increased $22.0 million from FY 2021 to FY 2022. This is the result of an
increase in the contracts payable related to the capital improvement program. The non-current
liabilities increased by $15.0 million due to the net effect of $43.4 million increase in RIIB loans,
the $1.6 million increase loans payable WIFIA for capitalized interest, principal debt service
payments relating to the loans, an increase in lease liability and increase in asset retirement
obligation and the decrease in the net pension and net OPEB liabilites.

Total net position increased by $27.7 million to $618.0 million in FY 2022, which demonstrates
NBC’s improving financial position. The largest portion of NBC’s net position, 85.3%, reflects net
investment in capital assets. NBC uses these capital assets to provide wastewater treatment
and collection services to its customers.

Only the unrestricted net position is available for future spending. Although NBC’s investment in
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to
repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot
be used to liquidate these liabilities.
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Condensed Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Operating revenues
User fees
Pretreatment fees
Connection fees/capacity charges
Septage income
Renewable energy credits revenues
Other operating revenues

Non-operating revenues
Interestincome
Gain on disposal of asset
Grant revenue
Sewer tie-in revenue
Miscellaneous revenues
Total revenues

Operating expenses
Personnel services
Operating supplies/expense
Professional services
Depreciation and amortization

Non-operating expenses
Interest Expense
Bond and note fees
Loss on economic defeasance
Total expenses

Net income before capital contribution

Capital contribution
Change in net position

Total net position - beginning of year

Total net position - end of year
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FY 2022 FY 2021
102,132,232 $ 102,984,257
61,280 71,700
269,660 357,070
372,346 352,135
648,148 604,033
549,200 213,092
132,830 25,879
10,241
- 27,415
2,384,273 -
346,499 280,906
106,906,709 104,916,487
23,988,962 23,193,856
17,218,133 15,635,215
1,738,671 1,592,497
22,223,491 17,093,870
14,450,782 13,964,362
588,835 661,536
- 111,138
80,208,874 72,252,474
26,697,835 32,664,013
1,000,000 -
27,697,835 32,664,013
590,266,303 557,602,288
617,964,138 $ 590,266,303




Revenue

User fees are NBC's primary source of revenue, representing approximately 95.5% of total
revenue. FY 2022 user fees were $102,132,232 which is $852,025 lower than the prior year. In
FY 2022, other operating revenue increased by $336,108 primarily as the result of the late fee
revenue. Non-operating revenue increased by $2.5 million, reflecting sewer tie-in revenue for
two large customers and higher investment income.

FY 2022 Revenue

Other Revenue,
4.5%

_—

Non-Residential

UserFees,
39.7%

Residential
UserFees,
55.8%

Total expense in FY 2022 increased by $8.0 million from the prior year primarily due to an
increase in operating supplies/expense, and depreciation and amortization. Non-operating
expense increased by $302,581 or 2.05% from FY 2021 to FY 2022 as the result of higher interest
expense.

Total operating expense was $7.7 million or 1.3% higher in FY 2022 than the prior year. The
increase in operating expense was the result of higher personnel services, operating
supplies/expense, professional services expense, and depreciation and amortization expense.

In FY 2022, personnel services increased by $795,106 or 3.43% nore than the prior year. This is
the result of an increase in union and non-union wages, fringe benefits resulting from the GASB
68 entries relating to pensions, and GASB 75 entries relating to OPEB.

Operating supplies/expense increased by $1.6 million or 10.12% over the prior year due to an
increase in repair, maintenance/service agreement, insurance, chemicals, and electricity
expense. The FY 2022 professional services expense was $146,174 or 9.18% higher than the
prior year. This is primarily due to an increase in legal expense and regulatory expense.
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Operating Expenses for FY 2022 and FY 2021

. $23,193,856
Personnel Services

$23,988,962
. . $15,635,215
Operating Supplies/Expense
$17,218,133
) [ s1502,497
Professional Services
$1,738,671
- . $17,093,870
Depreciation and Amortization
$22,223,491
$1,000,000 $6,000,000 $11,000,000 $16,000,000 $21,000,000 $26,000,000

Capital contributions increased $1,000,000 from FY 2021 to FY 2022 due to principal forgiveness
of the 2021 Series A loan from RIIB.

Capital Assets and Debt Administration

Capital Assets

At the end of FY 2022, NBC had $1.3 billion invested in net capital assets. Total net capital
assets increased more than $176.5 million, or 12.55% over prior year. The majority of this
increase relates to NBC’s investment in capital projects and is reflected in construction in
progress that is $131.6 million higher than the prior year. In FY 2022, capital projects completed
increased $41.2 million due to a reclassification from construction in progress to completed
projects. NBC also has a new capital asset category leased land as a result of implementation of
GASB 87. For additional information relating to capital assets refer to the notes to the financial
statement on page 40.

The following table summarizes NBC's capital assets as of June 30, 2022 and 2021.

Capital Assets

FY 2022 FY 2021
Capital assets
Land S 2,754,407 S 2,754,407
Plant & Equipment 111,524,562 107,805,191
Capital Projects Completed 1,005,551,311 964,395,968
Leased Land 2,344,137 2,344,137
Construction in Progress 460,672,822 329,039,245
1,582,847,239 1,406,338,948
Less accumulated depreciation
and amortization 293,019,724 271,096,220
Net capital assets 1,289,827,515 1,135,242,728
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Capital Assets
June 30, 2022

Land Plant & Equipment

0.2% _— 7.0%

Construction in

Progress \

29.1%
Leased Land /
0.1%
Capital Projects
Completed
63.5%

Long-Term Debt

Total outstanding long-term debt increased by $16.7 million as the net result of the $43.4
million increase in RIIB loans payable, increase in the WIFIA loan payable for capitalized interest,
and principal payments on loans and bonds payable. For additional information relating to long-
term debt refer to the notes to the financial statement on pages 41-47.

FY 2022 FY 2021

Long-Term Debt

Current portion of loans payable S 23,102,904 S 23,915,270
Current portion of revenue bonds 5,325,000 4,255,000
Loans payable WIFIA 461,271,187 459,704,608
Loans payable, net 273,791,419 253,467,058
Revenue bonds, net 253,088,030 258,550,064
Total Long-Term Debt S 1,016,578,540 S 999,892,000

Currently Known Facts, Conditions, or Decisions
NBC's credit ratings are shown in the following table:

Rating/Outlook

Long-Term Rating 2022 A

S&P Global Rating AA-/Stable AA-/Stable

Kroll Bond Rating Agency AA/Stable N/A

20



Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budget

FY 2023 Budget

The FY 2023 Budget, which includes the operating and capital budgets, totals $330.6 million and
is $44.9 million or 15.7% higher than the prior year. This is driven by a $42.8 million increase in
the capital budget primarily for Capital Improvement Program (CIP) and completion of the
federally mandated CSO Phase Il A Facilities.

Operating Budget

The FY 2023 Operating Budget is $107.0 million, which is approximately $2.1 million, or 0.2%
greater than the FY 2022 budget. Budgeted operating revenue is 2.0% higher, primarily due to
an increase in budgeted user fee revenue and a 0.56% across-the-board rate increase effective
May 1, 2022.

NBC’s budgeted operating expense for FY 2023 is $51.4 million which is $2.5 million or 5.1%
more than the prior year. This is due to an increase in personnel, operating supplies/expense,
professional services, and lease/subscription expense.

Debt service is lower due to the economic defeasance of the 2002 Series bonds as well as debt
amortization.

Capital Budget

The FY 2023 Capital Budget includes the Operating Capital Program (OCP) and the CIP and is
$223.6 million. This is $42.8 million or 23.7% more than prior year and is primarily driven by a
$43.5 million increase in the CIP. Funding for the capital program in FY 2023 shows the use of
WIFIA proceeds with $191.9 million programmed to finance capital improvements in the
upcoming fiscal year.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide the Board, NBC’s ratepayers, bond investors and
other interested parties with a general overview of NBC’s finances. If there are any questions
concerning this report or a need for additional financial information, please contact the Chief
Financial Officer at One Service Road, Providence, Rl 02905. This report is available online at
www.narrabay.com.
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NARRAGANSETT BAY COMMISSION
Statement of Net Position
June 30, 2022

Assets

Current assets
Accounts receivable

Sewer use (net of allowance) S

Sewer use unbilled
Receivables, RIIB
Receivables, WIFIA
Receivables, other
Prepaid expenses

13,115,084
6,659,090
1,000,000

297,271,571
18,724
305,336

Total current assets

318,369,805

Non-current assets

Restricted assets
Cash and cash equivalents, restricted

94,826,129

Total restricted assets

94,826,129

Capital assets

Land

Plant and equipment
Capital projects completed
Leased land

Construction in progress

2,754,407
111,524,562
1,005,551,311
2,344,137
460,672,822

Subtotal
Less: accumulated depreciation and amortization

1,582,847,239
293,019,724

Total net capital assets

1,289,827,515

Other assets
Net pension asset - Non-Union Defined Benefit Plan

2,183,820

Total non-current assets

1,386,837,464

Total assets

1,705,207,269

Deferred outflows of resources

Loss on refunding of debt, net
Pension related outflows, net
OPEB related outflows, net
Asset retirement obligation, net

5,037,851
6,575,386
636,732
427,500

Total deferred outflows of resources S

12,677,469

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NARRAGANSETT BAY COMMISSION
Statement of Net Position (Continued)
June 30, 2022

Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable
Contracts payable
Accrued interest payable
Accrued expense
Current portion of the other accrued expense
Current portion of loans payable
Current portion of revenue bonds
Current poriton of lease liability

2,113,423
44,737,919
4,292,117
933,717
236,682
23,102,904
5,325,000
104,916

Total current liabilities

80,846,678

Non-current liabilities

Other accrued expense, net

Net pension liability - ERSRI Pension Plan
Net OPEB liability

Loans payable, WIFIA

Loans payable, net

Revenue bond, net

Lease liability, net

Asset retirement obligation

3,318,908
14,631,376
1,912,937
461,271,187
273,791,419
253,088,030
2,133,938
450,000

Total non-current liabilities

1,010,597,795

Total liabilities

1,091,444,473

Deferred inflows of resources

Gain on refunding debt, net
Pension related inflows, net
OPEB related inflows, net

2,413,293
4,330,800
1,732,034

Total deferred inflows of resources

8,476,127

Net position

Net investment in capital assets

Restricted - environmental enforcement fund
Restricted - bond covenants

Restricted - debt service reserve fund

Restricted - operating reserve for revenue stability fund
Restricted - operating capital

Unrestricted

527,168,331
59,508
67,265,617
2,967,686
4,507,306
11,539,532
4,456,158

Total net position

S 617,964,138

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NARRAGANSETT BAY COMMISSION
Statement of Revenue, Expense and Changes in Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Operating revenue

User fees, residential S 59,654,921
User fees, commercial and industrial 42,477,311
Connection fees/capacity charges 269,660
Pretreatment fees 61,280
Septage income 372,346
Renewable energy credits 648,148
Miscellaneous revenue 190,785
Late charge penalties 358,415
Total operating revenue 104,032,866

Operating expense

Personnel services 23,988,962
Operating supplies/expense 17,218,133
Professional services 1,738,671
Depreciation and amortization 22,223,491
Total operating expense 65,169,257
Operating income 38,863,609

Non-operating revenue (expense)

Interest expense (14,450,782)
Interest income 132,830
Gain on sale of capital asset 10,241
Bond and note fees (588,835)
Sewer tie-in revenue 2,384,273
Miscellaneous income 346,499
Total non-operating revenue (expense) (12,165,774)
Net income before capital contribution 26,697,835
Capital Contribution 1,000,000
Change in net position 27,697,835
Total net position, beginning of year 590,266,303
Total net position, end of year S 617,964,138

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NARRAGANSETT BAY COMMISSION
Statement of Cash Flows
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Cash flows from operating activities

Cash received from customers

Cash paid to suppliers for goods and services
Cash paid to employees for services

Other non-operating revenue

Net cash provided by operating activities
Cash flows from capital and related financing activities

WIFIA loan receipts
Acquisitions and construction of capital assets
Principal paid on long-term debt and leases
Interest paid on long-term debt and leases
Bond and note fees paid
Gain on disposal capital asset
Cash received from RIIB from refunding gain
Net cash used for capital and related financing activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Interest income
Net cash provided by investing activities

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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$ 104,876,392
(18,154,610)
(26,891,253)

2,730,772

62,561,301

105,873,469
(112,871,130)
(28,275,552)
(13,146,245)
(56,085)
10,241
2,609,938

(45,855,364)

132,830

132,830

16,838,767
77,987,362

S 94,826,129

(Continued)



NARRAGANSETT BAY COMMISSION
Statement of Cash Flows (Continued)
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Reconciliation of operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities

Operating Income S 38,863,609

Adjustments to reconcile operating income to net cash
provided by operating activities

Depreciation and amortization 22,223,491
Changes in assets, deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows

Increase in accounts receivable sewer user fees (298,613)

Decrease in sewer user fees unbilled revenue 1,040,090

Decrease in other receivables 102,048

Decrease in prepaid expense 100,770

Increase in pension related deferred outflows of resources, net (2,414,246)

Increase in OPEB related deferred outflows of resources, net (139,707)

Decrease in net pension asset 4,613,375

Decrease in pension related deferred inflows of resources, net (1,712,159)

Increase in OPEB related deferred inflows of resources, net 652,218

Decrease in net pension liability (3,069,872)

Decrease in net OPEB liability (889,070)

Increase in accounts payable 701,592

Increase in accrued expense 57,003

Non-operating revenue reported as operating revenue received 2,730,772

Total adjustments 23,697,692

Net cash provided by operating activities S 62,561,301

Non-cash capital and related financing activities

NBC participates in the State Revolving Loan Fund program as described in Note 5 to the financial
statements. Project costs are paid directly by the RIIB on behalf of NBC. Certain RIIB loans are structured
with principal forgiveness, which is reported as contributed capital and is reported in the financial
statements. The State Revolving Loan Fund activity during the year was as follows:

Increase in loan payable RIIB S (43,427,266)
Capital contribution (1,000,000)
Increase in amount due from RIIB 1,000,000
RIIB costs of issuance 532,750
Capitalized interest RIIB 15,350
Acquisitions and construction of capital assets 42,879,166

NBC participates in a WIFIA Loan program as described in Note 7 to the financial statements.
Increase in loan payable WIFIA S (1,566,579)
Capitalized interest WIFIA 1,566,579

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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NARRAGANSETT BAY COMMISSION
Statement of Net Fiduciary Position
June 30, 2022

Assets
Investments, at fair value:

Investment contract with insurance company

Pooled separate account investments:
Large Cap US Equity
Small/Mid Cap US Equity
International Equity
Intermediate to Long-Term Bonds

Total Investments

Contributions Receivable
Total Assets

Net position restricted for pension benefits

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Non-Union
Defined Benefit
Pension Fund

S 3,596,449

7,917,761
2,723,777
3,580,398
7,941,288

25,759,673

1,000,000

26,759,673

S 26,759,673




NARRAGANSETT BAY COMMISSION
Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Position
For the Year Ended June 30, 2022

Non-Union
Defined Benefit
Pension Fund

Additions
Contributions
Employer S 1,767,069
Employee 521,597

Total contributions 2,288,666

Investment Income

Net appreciation (depreciation) in fair value of investments (4,741,630)

Interest and dividends 58,286

Less investment expense (168,867)

Net investment income (4,852,211)

Total additions (2,563,545)
Deductions

Benefit payments, including refunds of member contributions 784,184

Administrative expenses 18,137

Total deductions 802,321

Net decrease in fiduciary net position (3,365,866)

Net position restricted for pension benefits, beginning of year, restated 30,125,539

Net position restricted for pension benefits, end of year S 26,759,673

Notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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Narragansett Bay Commission
Notes to Financial Statements
June 30, 2022

1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Basis of presentation - The financial statements of the NBC have been prepared in conformity with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to governmental
entities. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing governmental accounting and financial reporting principles. The following Notes to the
Financial Statements are an integral part of NBC's financial statements.

Reporting entity - NBC is a public corporation established in 1980 by an Act of the Rhode Island
Legislature. NBC was created for purposes of acquiring, planning, constructing, extending, improving,
operating, and maintaining publicly owned wastewater treatment facility (Field's Point Facility) in the
district. NBC took over operational control on May 1, 1982. The Field's Point service area includes the City
of Providence and the Towns of North Providence and Johnston and portions of the Town of Lincoln and
the City of Cranston.

On June 27, 1991, the Governor of the State of Rhode Island signed into law legislation mandating the
merger of NBC and the Blackstone Valley District Commission (BVDC). The merger became effective
January 1, 1992. The Bucklin Point service area includes the City of Pawtucket, the City of Central Falls,
Rumford area of the City of East Providence and portions of the Towns of Lincoln, Cumberland, and
Smithfield.

NBCis considered a related organization of the State of Rhode Island for financial reporting purposes. NBC
is reported as a related organization of the State of Rhode Island, and not as a component unit, based on
the criteria of GASB Statement No. 14 "The Financial Reporting Entity", as amended by GASB Statement
No. 39 "Determining Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units" and as amended by GASB
Statement No. 61 "Financial Reporting Entity — Omnibus."

The State of Rhode Island is accountable for NBC due to the fact that the Governor appoints the voting
majority of NBC's Board of Commissioners. The State of Rhode Island, however, is not financially
accountable for the following reasons: it is unable to impose its will on NBC, NBC provides no specific
financial benefit to, or imposes no specific financial burden on the State of Rhode Island, and NBC is not
fiscally dependent on the State of Rhode Island.

In evaluating the inclusion of potential component units within its financial reporting entity, NBC applied
the criteria prescribed by GASB Statement No. 14, as amended by GASB Statement No. 39, “Determining
Whether Certain Organizations are Component Units” and GASB Statement No. 61 “Financial Reporting
Entity Omnibus”. A component unitis a legally separate organization for which the officials of the primary
government are financially accountable or other organizations for which the nature and significance of
their relationship with the primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s
financial statements to be misleading. Through the application of GASB Statements Nos. 14, 39 and 61
criteria, the Non-Union Defined Benefit Pension Fund has been presented as a fiduciary component unit
in the NBC Fiduciary Fund Financial Statements.
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The Non-Union Defined Benefit Pension fund is a pension fund discussed in Note 11 of the financial
statements. The plan year of the Non-Union Defined Benefit Pension fund ends on December 31. The
Non-Union Defined Benefit Pension fund issues separate financial statements.

Measurement focus and basis of accounting - The accounting policies of NBC’s Business-Type Activities
conform to generally accepted accounting principles as applicable to governmental proprietary fund types
(enterprise funds). For enterprise funds, the intent of the governing body is that costs of providing goods
or services to the general public on a continuing basis be financed or recovered through user charges.

The basic financial statements of NBC, which include the Business-Type Activities and the Fiduciary Activity
financial statements are accounted for using the "economic resources" measurement focus and have
been prepared on the accrual basis of accounting with the exception of fines and monitoring fees, which
are recorded on a cash basis which are immaterial. Under the accrual basis of accounting, all assets,
deferred outflows, liabilities, and deferred inflows associated with operations are included on the
Statement of Net Position, and revenue is recorded when earned and expense is recognized at the time
liabilities are incurred.

Cash equivalents - For purposes of the statement of cash flows, all cash equivalents are considered to be
highly liquid investments (including restricted assets) with a maturity of three months or less from date
of acquisition.

Cash and cash equivalents restricted accounts - Based upon a report and order issued by the Rhode Island
Public Utilities Commission (PUC), along with the Trust Indenture and thirty Supplemental Indentures
(collectively "the Indenture"), NBC established accounts for operating capital assets, debt service, debt
service coverage and an operating reserve for revenue stability fund. NBC is required to set aside a certain
percentage of its monthly receipts from all revenue into the restricted cash accounts. Funds from the
accounts may only be used for those expenses outlined above and any other use so ordered by the PUC
and in conformance with the Trust Indenture. Cash and cash equivalents are also restricted for acquisition
and construction of capital assets and bond covenants as set forth in the Trust Indenture. The restricted
cash for environmental enforcement fund (EEF) activities is in accordance with Rhode Island General Law
46-25-38.1.

Investments — Investments are valued at fair value, except for money market funds and investment pool
accounts, which are reported at net asset value per share (which approximates fair value)

Receivables - Fixed fees for sewer usage are billed to all customers in advance on a monthly basis.
Consumption based fees are billed in arrears on a monthly basis, based on estimated and actual water

consumption meter readings.

The allowance for doubtful accounts for June 30, 2022 was $63,378.
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Capital assets - Capital assets are recorded at cost. Plant and equipment and capital projects completed
are depreciated using the straight-line method over the estimated useful lives of the respective assets.
Construction in progress and land are not depreciated. NBC's asset capitalization threshold is $5,000.
Depreciation expense is recognized over the following useful lives:

Years
Plant and equipment 3-50
Capital projects completed 5-100

Construction in progress - Construction in progress consists of the planning, design, and construction
costs. Upon completing the project and finalizing the financial transaction, the construction in progress is
transferred into the completed project capital asset account. Once transferred, NBC starts to depreciate
the completed capital project.

Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources- Deferred outflows of resources
represent a consumption of net position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense) until then. Deferred inflow of resources represents an acquisition of net
position that applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources (revenue)
until that time. NBC deferred outflows and resourced and deferred inflows of resources relate to its
pension plan other post-employment benefit plan, Gains/Losses on refunding debt and Asset retirement
obligation and will be amortized as a component of pension, post- employment benefit expense, debt
service and amortization in future years.

Long-term debt - Long-term debt is reported as a liability in the Statement of Net Position. Bond premiums
are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds. Bond premiums are presented in addition to the
face amount of the bonds payable.

The total unamortized bond premiums as of June 30, 2022 were $458,030.
The total bond and loan fees for the year ending June 30, 2022 were $588,835.

Pensions - For purposes of measuring the net pension liability (asset), deferred outflows of resources and
deferred inflows of resources related to pensions, and pension expense, information about the fiduciary
net position of the Employees' Retirement System Plan Rhode Island (ERSRI) and the Non-Union Defined
Benefit Pension Plan and the additions to/deductions from each respective plan’s fiduciary net position
have been determined on the same basis as they are reported by plan. For further information on both
the ERSRI plan and Non-Union Defined Benefit Plan, please refer to Notes to Financial Statements, notes
10 and 11.

For this purpose, benefit payments (including refunds of employee contributions) are recognized when
due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms. Investments are reported at fair value. The ERSRI
plan has a measurement date of June 30, 2021 while the NBC’s Non-Union Defined Benefit Plan has a
measurement date of June 30, 2022.
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OPEB- For purposes of measuring the net OPEB liability, deferred outflows or resources and deferred
inflows of resources related to OPEB, and OPEB expense information about the fiduciary net position of
the State Employees’ and Electing Teachers OPEB System and additions to/deductions from the plan’s
fiduciary net position have been determined on the same basis as they reported by the State Employees’
and Electing Teachers OPEB system. For this purpose, the State Employees’ and Electing Teachers OPEB
System recognizes benefit payments when due and payable in accordance with the benefit terms.
Investments are reported at fair value.

Capital contributions - Capital contributions represent financial assistance from Federal governments,
State governments and other organizations for the construction and upgrade of wastewater treatment
facilities and related capital projects.

Operating revenue and expense - Operating revenue and expense for NBC are those that result from
providing wastewater treatment and collection services and related activities. They also include all
revenue and expense not related to capital and related financing, noncapital financing or investing
activities. All revenue and expense not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenue and
expense.

Contributions- In the Pension Trust Fund member contributions are recognized in the period in which
compensation subject to required contributions are earned. NBC contributions are recognized when due
and the NBC has made a formal commitment to provide contributions.

Payment of Benefits - In the Pension Trust benefits payments to participants and refund of contributions
are recorded upon distribution in accordance with the terms of the Plan.

Income taxes - NBC is exempt from Federal and State income taxes.

Regulatory - NBC is a regulated utility, and its rates are set by the PUC. For rate-making purposes,
depreciation expense is excluded while principal payments and operating capital are included in the total
expenses to arrive at a regulatory net income (loss). For this reason, the net income (loss) on a regulatory
basis differs from the change in net position in the audited financial statements, which are prepared in
conformance with generally accepted accounting principles.

Estimates - The preparation of financial statements in conformity with the generally accepted accounting
principles requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial
statements and the reported amounts of revenue and expense during the reporting period. Actual results
could differ from those estimates.

Recently Issued Accounting Standards

NBC has implemented the following new accounting pronouncements:

GASB Statement No. 87, Leases, effective for NBC's fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.

GASB Statement No. 92, Omnibus 2020, effective for NBC's fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.
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GASB Statement No. 89, Accounting for Interest Cost incurred before the end of a construction period,
effective for NBC's fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.

GASB Statement No. 97, Certain Component Unit Criteria, and Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans — an amendment of GASB Statements
No. 14 and No. 84, and a supersession of GASB Statement No. 32 is effective for NBC fiscal year ending

June 30, 2022, except for paragraphs 4 and 5 which are effective upon issuance.

GASB Statement No. 93, Replacement of Interbank Offered Rates, paragraphs 11b, 13 and 14, effective
for NBC fiscal year ending June 30, 2022.

As discussed in Note 8, the adoption of GASB Statement No. 87 resulted in recording a leased land asset
and a lease liability. The adoption of GASB Statement No. 92, GASB Statement No. 89, GASB Statement
No. 97 and GASB Statement No. 93 applicable in fiscal year 2022 did not have an impact on the NBC'’s
financial position or results of operations.

NBC will adopt the following new accounting pronouncements int the future years:

GASB Statement 91, Conduit Debt Obligations effective for NBC's fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.

GASB Statement No. 94, Public-Private and Public-Public Partnerships and Availability Payment
Arrangements effective for NBC’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2023

GASB Statement No. 96, Subscription-Based Information Technology Arrangements effective for NBC's
fiscal year ending June 30, 2023.

GASB Statement No. 99, Omnibus 2022 effective for leases, PPPs and SBITAs are effective for NBC's fiscal
year ending June 30, 2023. The financial guarantees and classifications and reporting of derivatives are

effective for NBC’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2024.

GASB Statement No. 100, Accounting Changes and Error Corrections—an amendment of GASB
Statement No. 62 effective for NBC’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2024.

GASB Statement No. 101, Compensated Absences effective for NBC’s fiscal year ending June 30, 2025.

The impact of these pronouncements on the NBC’s financial statements has not been determined.
2 — CAsH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

CAsH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS — BUSINESS -TYPE ACTIVITY
Deposits - NBC’s cash deposits on June 30, 2022 were $19,386,340, with corresponding bank balances of
$19,900,917. All NBC’s cash equivalents are restricted assets and considered to be highly liquid

investments with a maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition.

In accordance with Rhode Island General Laws, Chapter 35-10.1, depository institutions holding deposits
of the State, its agencies, or governmental subdivisions of the State, shall at a minimum, insure or pledge
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eligible collateral equal to one hundred percent of time deposits with maturities greater than sixty days.
Any of these institutions, which do not meet minimum capital standards prescribed by federal regulators,
shall insure, or pledge eligible collateral equal to one hundred percent of deposits, regardless of maturity.

Bank Balance
Insured (Federal depository insurance funds) S 250,000
Collateralized with securities held by pledging financial
institution's or its agent, in NBC's name 19,650,917
Total Bank Balance S 19,900,917

Investment policy — The investment policy applies to all funds of the NBC, except those funds covered by
any separate NBC Board approved agreements, or pension or retirement funds held in trust for the NBC
Non-Union Retirement Plans and the NBC Deferred Compensation Plan. NBC's investment policy objective
states that all financial assets held by NBC shall be invested in a manner that will preserve the value and
safety of capital. NBC shall invest funds in order to maximize earnings and minimize risk during the period
of availability of the funds. NBC's investment policy permits investments in U.S. Treasury securities,
securities of the U.S. Government agencies and instrumentalities that are backed by the full faith and
credit or guarantee of the U.S. Government, which have a liquid market with a readily determinable fair
value, investment - grade obligations of the State of Rhode Island, or any municipality or political
subdivision of the State of Rhode Island, repurchase agreements backed by collateral, certificate of
deposits, investment agreements, commercial paper,money market mutual funds whose portfolios
consist of U.S. Treasury securities, U.S. agency obligations and repurchase agreements fully collateralized
by such securities and governmental investment products backed by collateral consisting of U.S. Treasury
and U.S. Agency securities. Money held by the Trustee under the Trust Indenture is invested at the
direction of an Authorized Officer from NBC and must be invested in accordance with Permitted
Investments as defined under the Trust Indenture.

NBC categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. GASB Statement No. 72, Fair Value Measurement and Application, defines
fair value as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.

The three categories within the hierarchy are as follows:

Level 1 - Inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) for identical assets in active markets that a government
can access at the measurement date.

Level 2 - Inputs other than quoted prices in active markets that are observable for an asset either directly
or indirectly.

Level 3 - Inputs that are unobservable inputs for the asset supported by little or no market activity and
should be used only if relevant Level 1 and Level 2 inputs are not available.
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As of June 30, 2022, NBC had investments as follows:

Investments measured at the Net Asset Value (NAV) June 30, 2022 Maturity
Goldman Sachs Financial Square Government Fund S 75,038,462 Average 13 days
Ocean State Investment Pool (OSIP) 400,827 N/A

Total investments measured at NAV S 75,439,289

The average maturity for the Goldman Sachs Financial Square Government Fund and the nature of the
cash portfolio for the Ocean State Investment Pool meets the criteria for these investments to be
presented as a cash equivalent for financial statement purposes.

Ocean State Investment Pool - The Ocean State Investment Pool (OSIP) Cash Portfolio is a portfolio of the
Ocean State Investment Pool Trust, which is an investment pool established by the General Treasurer of
the State of Rl under Declaration of Trust, date January 25, 2012 under the Rhode Island Local Government
Investment Pool Act, G.L. 35-10.2, of the Rhode Island General Law as amended, for the purpose of
investing funds of, and funds under custody of agencies, authorities, commissions, boards, municipalities,
political subdivisions, and other public units of the State of Rhode Island. The Cash Portfolio, which began
operations on March 6, 2012 is not registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) as an
investment company, OSIP is an unregistered pool organized under a trust authorized by Rhode Island
state law. OSIP must conform to the Rhode Island general laws that authorize the pool, and its operation
and management. OSIP is allowed to offer a stable $1.00 NAV provided it is managed according to Rule
2a-7 and GASB 79. FIAM LLC is OSIP’s investment adviser and, as an SEC registered investment adviser, is
subject to SEC oversight and must comply with the Advisers Act.

The OSIP is not rated and the weighted average maturity of investments held in the pool is not to exceed
60 days. Investments reported at the NAV are not subject to the fair value hierarchy described above.
There are no participant withdrawal limitations. A copy of the annual report for the Ocean State
Investment Pool can be obtained by writing to the Office of the General Treasurer, Finance Department,
50 Service Avenue, Warwick, RI 02886.

Goldman Sachs Financial Square Government Fund

Goldman Sachs Financial Square Government Fund is a money market fund with an average maturity of
13 days. These investments are used as temporary cash management investments. The fair value of these
money market funds reflects the NAV reported by the fund administrator which is a stable $1 per unit.
The underlying investments, which are short-term cash equivalent typed investments, are generally
carried at amortized cost which approximates fair value. There are no withdrawal limitations for the
money market funds. The monies invested in the Goldman Sachs Financial Square Government Fund held
by the Trustee were rated Aaa-mf by Moody's Investor Service, Inc.

Custodial credit risk — Investment securities are exposed to custodial risk if the securities are uninsured,
are not registered in the name of the government and are held by either: a) the counterparty or b) the
counterparty’s trust department or agency but not in the government’s name. NBC does not have a formal
investment policy related to custodial credit risk. NBC does not directly own any securities.

Concentration of credit risk - NBC's investment policy is not specific but states that investments shall be

diversified to minimize the risk of loss that may occur due to concentration in a specific maturity, a specific
issue, or a specific class of securities.
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Interest rate risk — NBC's investment policy does not limit investment maturities as a means of limiting its
exposure to fair value losses arising from interest rates. Money held by the Trustee under the Indenture
must be invested in accordance with permitted investments as defined under the Trust Indenture, which
mitigates interest rate exposure by limiting federal funds or bankers’ acceptances to a maximum term of
one year and requires Bond Insurer approval of Repurchase Agreements which exceed 30 days.

Foreign currency risk — Foreign currency risk is the risk that changes in exchange rates will adversely
impact the fair value of an investment or a deposit. NBC has no deposits subject to foreign currency risk.

INVESTMENTS — FIDUCIARY ACTIVITY NON-UNION DEFINED BENEFIT PLAN— PENSION FUND

Investment Policy

The Plan's asset investment policy is established and may be amended by the Investment Committee (IC)
by a majority vote of its members. It is the policy of the IC to invest the assets in a prudent manner and
establish an investment strategy following the concepts driven by modern portfolio theory, including risk,
return and correlations among asset classes. The primary objective of the IC's investment policy is to
preserve the actuarial soundness of the Plan by achieving a long-term return of at least the actuarial return
rate and to prudently manage the inherent investment risks that are related to the achievement of this
goal. The IC recognizes that the investment objective is long-term in nature, and that actual year-to-year
returns achieved may be above or below the actuarially assumed rate of return.

The IC has adopted asset allocation ranges and the adopted asset target allocation as of June 30, 2022 is
as follows:

Asset Class Target Allocation
Short-Term Bonds 10%
Large Cap US Equity 30%
Small/Mid Cap US Equity 10%
International Equity 15%
Intermediate to Long-Term Bonds 35%
Total 100%
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On June 30, 2022, the Plan had the following investments:

Description Fair Value
Investment contract with insurance company -
Separate Account Guaranteed Interest Contract (SAGIC) S 3,596,449
Pooled separate account investments:
Large Cap US Equity 7,917,761
Small/Mid Cap US Equity 2,723,777
International Equity 3,580,398
Intermediate to Long-Term Bonds 7,941,288

S 25,759,673

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk is the risk that in the event of a failure of the counterparty, the Plan will not be able
to recover its investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party. The Plan
does not have a formal investment policy related to custodial credit risk. As of June 30, 2022 the Plan had
no investments subject to custodial credit risk.

Interest Rate Risk

The Plan does not have a formal investment policy that limits the length of its investment maturities in
order to manage the exposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates. As of June 30,
2022, the Plan had the following investments subject to interest rate risk:

Weighted Average
Maturity/Duration

Fair Value (Years)

Investment contract with insurance company

SAGIC S 3,596,449 6.30
Pooled Separate account investments:

Western Asset Core Plus Bond 3,911,639 15.24

Inflation Protected Securities (DFA) 1,428,148 7.98

Delaware Extended Duration Bond 1,207,061 25.12

Alliance Bernstein Global Bond Advisor 1,394,440 9.02
Total Fair Value S 11,537,737
Portfolio weighted average maturity/duration 11.84

Credit Risk

The Plan does not have a formal investment policy that limits investment choices due to credit
risk. Credit quality information for the Plan’s investments subject to credit risk as of June 30,
2022 is as follows: MassMutual - Separate Account Guaranteed Interest Contract (SAGIC) rating
of A+.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Plan does not have a formal investment policy that limits the amount that may be invested
in a single issuer. Concentration of credit risk is the risk of loss attributed to the magnitude of an
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investment in a single issuer. Investments issued or explicitly guaranteed by the U.S. Government and
investments in diversified mutual funds, external investment pools, and other pooled investments are
excluded. As of June 30, 2022, the Plan had no assets subject to concentration of credit risk.

Fair Value Measurements

The Plan categorizes its fair value measurements within the fair value hierarchy established by generally
accepted accounting principles. The hierarchy is based on the valuation inputs used to measure the fair
value of the asset. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices in active markets for identical assets; Level 2 inputs
are significant other observable inputs; and Level 3 inputs are significant unobservable inputs.

The Plan has the following recurring fair value measurements as of June 30, 2022.

e Investment Contract with insurance company - Separate Account Guaranteed Interest Contract
(SAGIC) — The fair value is based on the SAGIC’s market value account. The market value account is
maintained at the fair value of the underlying assets and equals the number of units owned multiplied
by unit value. The unit value includes reinvested dividend and interest income, realized gains and
losses and unrealized gains and losses of the underlying assets. (Level 3 inputs)

The valuation methods for the Plan’s investments in pooled separate accounts measured at the net asset
value (NAV) per share or its equivalent are as follows:

e large, Mid and Small Cap US Equity Accounts — are primarily invested in domestic equity funds. The
fair values of the investments have been determined using the NAV equivalent per unit as determined
by the insurance company using the closing price of the underlying funds from the applicable
exchange, NYSE, NASDQ, etc. The redemption frequency is daily and there are no withdrawal
limitations for domestic equity accounts.

e International Equity Accounts - are primarily invested in international equity funds. The fair values of
the investments have been determined using the NAV equivalent per unit as determined by the
insurance company using the closing price of the underlying funds from the applicable exchange,
NYSE, NASDQ, etc. The redemption frequency is daily and there are no withdrawal limitations for
international equity accounts.

® Intermediate to Long Term Bond Accounts - are primarily invested in domestic fixed income funds with
some exposure to international fixed income funds. The fair values of the investments have been
determined using the NAV equivalent per unit as determined by the insurance company using the
closing price of the underlying funds from the applicable exchange, NYSE, NASDQ, etc. The
redemption frequency is daily and there are no withdrawal limitations for the bond accounts.

Concentrations
The Plan’s investment in the Separate Account Guaranteed Interest Contract is $3.6 million or 13.44% of
the Plan’s fiduciary net position as of June 30, 2022.

Rate of Return

For the year ended June 30, 2022 the annual money-weighted rate of return on Plan investments, net of
investment expense, was (15.99%). The money-weighted rate of return expresses investment
performance, net of investment expense, adjusted for the change amounts actually invested.
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3 — CAPITAL ASSETS

The following is a summary of changes in capital assets for the year ended June 30, 2022:

June 30, 2021 Additions Retirements June 30, 2022
Nondepreciable assets
Land S 2,754,407 S - S - S 2,754,407
Construction in progress 329,039,245 172,788,919 (41,155,342) 460,672,822
Total nondepreciable assets 331,793,652 172,788,919 (41,155,342) 463,427,229
Depreciable assets
Plant and equipment 107,805,191 3,996,858 (277,487) 111,524,562
Capital projects completed 964,395,968 41,155,343 - 1,005,551,311
Leased land 2,344,137 - - 2,344,137
Total depreciable assets 1,074,545,296 45,152,201 (277,487) 1,119,420,010

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization for

Plant and equipment (89,808,436) (5,250,710) 277,487 (94,781,709)
Capital projects completed (181,287,734) (16,833,075) - (198,120,809)
Leased land - (117,206) - (117,206)
Total accumulated depreciation (271,096,220) (22,200,991) 277,487 (293,019,724)

Total capital assets, net S 1,135,242,728 S 195,740,129 S (41,155,342)  $1,289,827,515

4 — COMPENSATED ABSENCES

NBC's employees are granted vacation and sick leave in varying amounts based on years of service with
NBC. At the termination of service, an employee is paid for accumulated unused vacation leave and sick
leave. Sick leave payments are based on age and years of service for both union and non-union employees.
NBC has determined that the dollar value of accumulated accrued vacation leave and sick leave, valued
at the current rate of pay, on June 30, 2022 to be $3,555,590. The accrued vacation and sick leave are
reported on the Statement of Net Position as other accrued expenses.

The changes in compensated absences for the year ended June 30, 2022 were as follows:

Amount Due
June 30, 2021 Additions Deductions  June 30,2022 Within One Year

Compensated absences S 3,645,395 S 236,002 S 325,807 S 3,555,590 S 236,682
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5 — LONG TERM DEBT — RHODE ISLAND INFRASTRUCTURE BANK (RIIB) LOANS PAYABLE

Loans from the RIIB are represented by a Revenue Bond of NBC. NBC revenue bonds are backed by a
gross revenue pledge of NBC's revenues and other monies, securities, reserve deposits and funds senior
to any other pledge, lien charge or encumbrance. RIIB loans typically are at a subsidized interest rate
which is one-third off of NBC’s market rate and may include a principal forgiveness component. If the loan
is part of a “pooled” RIIB bond, the interest rate subsidy may be suspended if other borrowers in the pool
fail to make their debt service payments. In addition, NBC must spend a specific amount, as is set forth in
the loan agreement, on “green” projects to qualify for principal forgiveness.

In accordance with the Trust Indenture, RIIB loans are subject to certain covenants including a “rate
covenant” requiring NBC to establish and maintain rates and charges adequate at all times, with other
available funds, to provide revenues and other monies at least sufficient to pay for operating expenses,
principal and interest, repairs and replacements, and funding of reserves. The Trust Indenture includes
a “debt service coverage ratio” that requires that Net Revenues in each fiscal year equal at least one
hundred twenty-five percent (125%) of the debt service requirement during such fiscal year with respect
to all bonds outstanding, other than RIIB loans, as of the first day of such fiscal year and one hundred
thirty-five percent (135%) of the Required Debt Service Fund Deposits for RIIB loans for such fiscal year
(net of the RIIB interest rate subsidy). Failure to comply with this requirement shall not be considered an
Event of Default as long as NBC has complied or is diligently proceeding to comply with the requirements
for the adequacy of rates and charges.

Events of Default include failure to make principal or interest payments when due, defaults related to the
performance or observance of any other of the covenants, agreements or conditions that has not been
remedied within 30 days of written notice, certain court orders, or NBC’s inability to pay its debts. Upon
notice of any Event of Default, all principal and accrued interest may be declared due and payable
immediately.
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NBC has seventeen loans outstanding with the RIIB which are classified as loans from direct borrowings
at June 30, 2022 as follows:
Payment/
June 30, 2021 Additions Defeased June 30, 2022

Narragansett Bay Commission Clean Water

Revenue Bonds, 2003 Series, issued on

November 13, 2003 in the amount of

$40,000,000, at an interest rate of 1.849%,

maturing September 1, 2024. S 9283000 S - S 2,247,000 S 7,036,000

Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater

System Revenue Bonds, 2004 Series B, issued

on December 30, 2004 in the amount of

$40,000,000, at an interest rate of 1.904%,

maturing September 1, 2024. 9,458,000 - 3,553,000 5,905,000

Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater

System Revenue Bonds, 2005 Series B, issued

on December 15, 2005 in the amount of

$30,000,000, at an interest rate of 1.897%,

maturing September 1, 2025. 8,607,000 - 1,653,000 6,954,000

Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater

System Revenue Bonds, 2006 Series A, issued

on December 21, 2006 in the amount of

$30,000,000, at an interest rate of 1.802%,

maturing September 1, 2026. 10,134,000 - 1,613,000 8,521,000

Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater

System Revenue Bonds, 2007 Series B, issued

on December 13, 2007 in the amount of

$25,000,000, at an interest rate of 2.029%,

maturing September 1, 2028. 12,139,000 - 1,411,000 10,728,000

Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater

System Revenue Bonds, 2009 Series A, issued

on October 6, 2009 in the amount

$55,000,000, at an interest rate of 1.377%,

and maturing September 1, 2030, with

principal forgiveness of $8,302,114. 31,324,940 - 2,739,043 28,585,897

Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater

System Revenue Bonds, 2010 Series A, issued

on February 12, 2010in the amount of

$2,000,000, at an interest rate of 1.022%, and

maturing September 1, 2029, with principal

forgiveness of $301,895. 886,410 - 85,754 800,656
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Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater
System Revenue Bonds, 2010 Series B,
issued on June 24, 2010in the amount of
$20,000,000, at an interest rate of 3.163%,
maturing September 1, 2030.

Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater
System Revenue Bonds, 2011 Series A, issued
on March 29, 2011 in the amount of
$30,000,000, at an interest rate of 2.759%,
and maturing September 1, 2031, with
principal forgiveness of $1,845,345.

Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater
System Revenue Bonds, 2012 Series A, issued
on June 28, 2012 in the amount of
$25,750,000, at an interest rate of 2.588%,
and maturing September 1, 2032, with
principal forgiveness of $354,202.

Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater
System Revenue Bonds, 2013 Series B, issued
on June 6, 2013 in the amount $25,000,000, at
an interest rate of 2.592%, and maturing
September 1, 2033, with principal
forgiveness of $80,966.

Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater
System Revenue Bonds, 2014 Series A, issued
on March 6, 2014 in the amount $45,000,000,
at an interest rate of 2.967%, maturing
September 1, 2034.

Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater
System Revenue Bonds, 2015 Series B, issued
on July 30, 2015 in the amount of $41,753,500,
at an interest rate of 3.049%, and maturing
September 1, 2044, with principal
forgiveness of $512,070.

Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater
System Revenue Bonds, 2016 Series A, issued
on June 2, 2016 in the amount of $23,000,000,
at an interest rate of 2.467%, maturing
September 1, 2037.

Payment/
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June 30, 2021 Additions Defeased June 30, 2022
11,362,000 - 979,000 10,383,000
17,472,779 - 1,329,838 16,142,941
16,557,360 - 1,187,934 15,369,426
17,323,723 - 1,145,258 16,178,465
33,589,000 - 1,998,000 31,591,000
37,029,314 - 1,092,844 35,936,470
20,069,000 - 1,001,000 19,068,000



Payment/
June 30, 2021 Additions Defeased June 30, 2022

Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater

System Revenue Bonds, 2019 Series A, issued

on April 4, 2019 in the amount of $35,000,000,

at an interest rate of 2.300%, and maturing

September 1, 2039, with principal

forgiveness of $1,000,000. 32,578,800 - 1,441,600 31,137,200

Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater

System Revenue Bonds, 2019 Series B, issued

on April 4, 2019 in the amount of $10,000,000,

at an interest rate of 1.910%, maturing

September 1, 2039. 9,568,000 - 438,000 9,130,000

Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater

System Revenue Bonds, 2021 Series A, issued

on November 16, 2021 in the amount of

$45,000,000, at an interest rate of 1.803%,

maturing September 1, 2038 with principal

forgiveness of $1,000,000. - 43,427,266 - 43,427,266

Total loans payable from direct borrowings  § 277,382,327 $ 43,427,266 S 23,915,271 S 296,894,322

Less current portion (23,915,270) (23,102,904)
Net long-term loans payable from direct

borrowings _S 253,467,057 $ 273,791,418

RIIB pays all invoices certified by NBC, either directly to the contractors or through reimbursement of NBC
for costs incurred on the projects funded by the RIIB loans. As of June 30, 2022, loans payable of
$296,894,323 are reported on the Statement of Net Position. NBC is obligated for the total loan amount
once the loan has been executed.

In prior years, the NBC defeased RIIB loans by placing the proceeds of refunding bonds in an irrevocable
trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old debt. Accordingly, the trust account assets
and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the NBC’s financial statements. At June 30,
2022 $3,614,787 of the bonds outstanding are considered defeased.

The 2021 Series A Bond proceeds includes the use of $588,084 for capitalized interest. The outstanding

loan balance at June 30,2022 includes $15,350 of accrued capitalized interest and $572,734 remains to be
accrued to the outstanding loan balance at June 30,2022.
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Debt principal and interest maturities of loans payable for future years as of June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Year Ending Loans from Direct Borrowings

June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 23,102,904 6,386,718 29,489,622
2024 23,614,795 6,250,529 29,865,324
2025 23,040,162 6,022,369 29,062,531
2026 19,854,787 5,526,383 25,381,170
2027 18,528,178 5,078,350 23,606,528

2028-2032 88,475,350 18,371,121 106,846,471

2033-2037 58,131,121 8,979,360 67,110,481

2038-2042 36,354,260 2,576,572 38,930,832

2043-2045 6,365,500 322,738 6,688,238
Total S 297,467,057 S 59,514,140 S 356,981,197

6 — LONG-TERM DEBT - REVENUE BONDS

The long-term debt - revenue bonds provided through public sale on June 30, 2022, consists of the
following:
June 30, 2021 Additions Deductions June 30, 2022

Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater System

Revenue Refunding Bonds, 2008 Series A, at an

interest rate of 2.290% issued on July 17, 2008 in

the amount of $56,465,000 and maturing

September 1, 2034. S 56,465,000 S - S - $ 56,465,000

Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater System

Revenue Bonds, 2013 Series C, issued on

December 12, 2013 in the amount of $34,970,000,

at an interest rate of 4.133%, maturing September

1, 2024 (plus unamortized premium at June 30,

2022 of $195,225). Partially refunded in FY 2020. 9,025,214 - 1,964,989 7,060,225

Narraganset Bay Commission Wastewater System

Refunding Revenue Bonds, 2015 Series A, issued

on May 5, 2015 in the amount of $40,085,000, at an

interest rate of 3.798%, maturing February 1, 2028

(plus unamortized premium at June 30, 2022 of

$262,805). Partially refunded FY 2020. 3,524,850 - 47,045 3,477,805

Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater

System, Refunding Revenue Bonds (federally

taxable) 2020 Series A, issued on March 19, 2020 in

the amount of $196,360,000 at an interest rate of

2.516% maturing on September 1, 2043. 193,790,000 - 2,380,000 191,410,000

Total long-term debt payable - revenue bonds 262,805,064  $ - S 4,392,034 258,413,030

Less current portion 4,255,000 5,325,000
Net long-term debt payable - revenue bonds S 258,550,064 S 253,088,030
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Principal and interest maturities of long-term debt for future years as of June 30, 2022 are as follows:

Year Ending Revenue Bonds
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 $ 5325000 S 6,151,644 $ 11,476,644
2024 7,730,000 5,959,017 13,689,017
2025 8,150,000 5,730,363 13,880,363
2026 12,140,000 5,504,339 17,644,339
2027 13,570,000 5,260,382 18,830,382
2028-2032 81,860,000 21,288,325 103,148,325
2033-2037 76,035,000 11,779,819 87,814,819
2038-2042 36,840,000 5,116,737 41,956,737
2043-2044 16,305,000 479,044 16,784,044
Total S 257,955,000 S 67,269,670 S 325,224,670

Total principal of $257,955,000 plus premiums of $458,030 to be amortized as of June 30, 2022 equals
total long-term debt of $258,413,030. Some of the above bonds are subject to federal arbitrage
regulations. Based on current calculations, NBC does not anticipate a material arbitrage liability, if any.

In prior years, the NBC defeased certain revenue bonds by placing the proceeds of the refunding bonds in
an irrevocable trust to provide for all future debt service payments on the old debt. Accounting the trust
account assets and the liability for the defeased bonds are not included in the NBC’s financial statements.
At June 30, 2022562,540,000 of the bonds outstanding are considered defeased.

7 — LONG-TERM DEBT - WATER INFRASTRUCTURE FINANCE AND INNOVATION ACT (WIFIA) LOAN PAYABLE

The NBC has two WIFIA loans outstanding with the US Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) which
are classified as loans from direct borrowings at June 30, 2022 as follows:

June 30, 2021

Additions

Payment/
Defeased

June 30, 2022

Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater
System Revenue Bonds, 2020 Series B, taxable
interest bonds originally issued on August 27,
2019 with a rate reset on October 26, 2020 in the
amount of $268,710,610 at a rate of 1.42% and

maturing September 1, 2046. S 269,064,160

Narragansett Bay Commission Wastewater
System Revenue Bonds, 2020 Series C, taxable
interest bonds issued on October 26, 2020 in
the amount of $190,633,824 at a rate of 1.6%

and maturing September 1, 2059. 190,640,448

S 1,441,802

124,777

$ 270,505,962

190,765,225

Total loans payable from direct borrowings 459 704,608

Less current portion -
Net long-term loans payable from direct
borrowings
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The 2020 Series B WIFIA loan may be used to fund eligible costs of the CSO Phase Il A Facilities. The 2020
Series C WIFIA loan may be used to fund eligible costs of the CSO Phase Il A Facilities, the Bucklin Point
Resiliency Improvements and other related costs. Projects that receive WIFIA credit assistance must
comply with all relevant federal laws and regulations. The total federal assistance for any eligible project
under the WIFIA program may not exceed 80% of total project costs. The maximum amount of the WIFIA
loan is 49% of the reasonably expected eligible project costs. The WIFIA loan is payable solely from
revenues pledged by NBC pursuant to its Trust Indenture and is equally and ratably secured on a parity
with NBC’s other long-term debt obligations issued under the Indenture.

NBC must satisfy certain conditions precedent as set forth in the WIFIA loan documentation prior to any
disbursement of the WIFIA loan and submit a certified requisition to the USEPA. NBC may request one
disbursement per month and, subject to review and approval of the requisition by the USEPA, the
requisitioned amount will be deposited by the USEPA into NBC’s account within 15 calendar days of the
receipt of the request.

Interest on funds drawn on the WIFIA loan accrues subsequent to each loan disbursement and is added
to the principal amount of the WIFIA loan. The WIFIA loan repayment begins in FY 2032 and the WIFIA
loan is fully amortized in fiscal year 2060. A receivable of $297,271,571 is reported on the Statement of
Net Position for that portion of the loans which have not been drawn down as of June 30, 2022. NBC may
prepay the WIFIA loan in whole or in part in accordance with the loan agreement; however, it may not be
repaid using federal funds.

Debt principal and interest maturities of WIFIA loan payable for future years as of June 30, 2022 are as
follows:

Year Ending Loans from Direct Borrowings
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 S - S - S -
2024 - - -
2025 - - -
2026 - - -
2027 - - -
2028-2032 - 3,136,199 3,136,199.00
2033-2037 - 32,421,315 32,421,315
2038-2042 102,746,974 32,219,846 134,966,820
2043-2047 173,819,101 20,312,651 194,131,752
2048-2052 39,137,124 14,081,435 53,218,559
2053-2057 96,727,602 7,813,242 104,540,844
2058-2060 48,840,386 987,941 49,828,327
Total S 461,271,187 $ 110,972,629 S 572,243,816
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8 — LEASE LIABILITY

NBC is leasing two plots of land (plot 315 lot 61: plot 315 Lots 88 and 86.1) in Coventry, Rl. NBC has
constructed, operates, and maintains two 1.5 MW wind turbines on these parcels. The leases were
entered into on July 14, 2016. The term of these two leases are an initial 25 years with a renewal terms
for up to three successive period of five years each. The rental expense was $4,500 at the commencement
of the two leases. There is a rent increase of 5% every 5 years thereafter during the term of the lease.

This is the first year that NBC is implementing GASB Statement No. 87 Leases. As a result of this
implementation, NBC recognized an asset leased land in the amount of $2,344,137 with related
amortization of $117,206 for the FY 2022. (See note 3). NBC recognized a lease liability of $2.344,137
when GASB Statement No. 87 was implemented. The lease liability as of June 30, 2022 was $2,238,854
and the interest expense incurred in FY 2022 relating to the leases was $8,117.

Lease principal and interest maturities as of June 30, 2022 are the following:

Year Ending Lease Liability
June 30, Principal Interest Total
2023 S 104,916 S 8,484 S 113,400
2024 105,310 8,090 113,400
2025 105,711 7,689 113,400
2026 106,118 7,282 113,400
2027 111,859 7,211 119,070
2028-2032 571,752 29,521 601,273
2033-2037 613,081 18,250 631,331
2038-2041 520,108 4916 525,024
Total S 2,238,854 S 91,444 § 2,330,299

At the conclusion of these two leases, it is NBC’s responsibility to decommission the two wind turbines in
conformance with the Land Lease agreement. Therefore, based on the requirement of GASB Statement
No. 83 Asset Retirement Obligations (AROs), NBC recognized a liability (ARO) and deferred outflow of
resources of $450,000 which will be amortized over estimated remaining useful life of the wind turbines,
which is 20 years. The measurement of the ARO is based on the best estimate approach of the current
value expected to be incurred to decommission the wind turbines.

9 — NET POSITION

NBC's net position is presented in the following three categories:

Net investment in capital assets
Net investment in capital assets reflects the portion of net position associated with non-liquid capital
assets, less outstanding capital asset related debt.

Restricted

This category represents external restrictions imposed by creditors, grantors, contributors, or laws and
regulations of other governments and restrictions imposed by law through constitutional provisions or
enabling legislation. The following three cash and cash equivalents are included in restricted net position.
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Restricted Environmental Enforcement - Chapter 46-25-38.1 of the RIGL established a restricted
environmental enforcement fund. The fund consists of sums recovered by administrative or civil
enforcement action and may be used as outlined in Chapter 46-25-38.1. NBC has restricted net position
equal to the balance of funds in the environmental enforcement restricted cash and cash equivalents
account of $59,508.

Restricted Debt Service Reserve Fund - NBC funded a restricted debt service reserve fund related to the
2013 Series C Wastewater System Revenue Bonds in the amount of $2,967,686. NBC has restricted net
position equal to the balance of the funds in the debt service reserve fund cash and cash equivalents
account.

Restricted Operating Reserve for Revenue Stability Fund - The PUC instructed NBC to establish an
operating reserve for revenue stability fund in the Order from Docket 3905. To access this fund, NBC must
demonstrate a serious revenue shortfall to the PUC. NBC has restricted net position equal to the balance
of the operating reserve for revenue stability cash and cash equivalents account in the amount of
$4,507,306.

Restricted Bond Covenants — Based on a review of the Trust Indenture bond covenants it was determined
that the Revenue Fund cash accounts, Operations and Maintenance Fund cash accounts, and the Debt
Service Fund cash accounts are restricted. Therefore, NBC has restricted net position for bond covenants
in the amount of $67,265,617.

Restricted Operating Capital — In accordance with the Trust Indenture, the Operating Capital Accounts in
the Project Fund are restricted for capital expenditures. NBC has established restricted net position for
the Operating Capital cash accounts in the amount $11,539,533.

Unrestricted
This category represents the residual amount of net position not included in the net investment in capital
assets or the restricted categories highlighted above.

10— UNION PENSION PLANS

Employees' Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island (ERSRI) Defined Benefit Plan

Plan description - All NBC eligible full-time union employees participate in a cost-sharing multiple-
employer defined benefit pension plan - the Employees' Retirement System Plan - administered by the
Employees' Retirement System of the State of Rhode Island (ERSRI). Under a cost-sharing plan, pension
obligations for employees of all employers are pooled, and plan assets are available to pay the benefits of
the employees of any participating employer providing pension benefits through the plan, regardless of
the status of the employers' payment of its pension obligation to the plan. The plan provides retirement,
disability benefits and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries.

The ERSRI issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for the plans. The report may be obtained at http://www.ersri.org.
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Benefit provisions - The level of benefits provided to participants is established by Chapter 36-10 of the
General Laws, which is subject to amendment by the General Assembly. Member benefit provisions vary
based on service credits accumulated at dates specified in various amendments to the General Laws
outlining minimum retirement age, benefit accrual rates and maximum benefit provisions. In general,
members accumulate service credits for each year of service subject to maximum benefit accruals of 80%
or 75%. For those hired after June 30, 2012, the benefit accrual rate is 1% per year with a maximum benefit
accrual of 40%. Members eligible to retire at September 30, 2009 may retire with 10 years of service at
age 60 or after 28 years of service at any age.

The retirement eligibility age increases proportionately for other members reflecting years of service and
other factors until it aligns with the Social Security Normal Retirement Age, which applies to any member
with less than 5 years of service as of July 1, 2012. Members are vested after 5 years of service.

The plan provides for survivor's benefits for service connected death and certain lump sum death benefits.
Joint and survivor benefit provision options are available to members.

Cost of living adjustments are provided but are currently suspended until the collective plans covering
state employees and teachers reach a funded status of 80%. Until the plans reach an 80% funded status,
interim cost of living adjustments are provided at four-year intervals.

The plan also provides nonservice-connected disability benefits after five years of service and service-
connected disability benefits with no minimum service requirement.

Contributions — The funding policy, as set forth in the General Laws, section 36-10-2, provides for
actuarially determined periodic contributions to the plan. For FY 2022, NBC employees, with less than 20
years of service as of July 1, 2012, were required to contribute 3.75% of their annual covered salary.
Employees with more than 20 years of service as of July 1, 2012, were required to contribute 11% of their
annual covered salary. NBC is required to contribute at an actuarially determined rate of 28.01% of annual
covered payroll for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2022. NBC contributed $1,731,185, $1,678,833, and
$1,553,112 for the fiscal years ended June 30, 2022, 2021, and 2020 respectively, equal to 100% of the
required contributions for each year.

Pension liabilities, pension expense, and deferred outflows of resourcesand deferred Inflows of
resources related to pensions - On June 30, 2022, NBC reported a liability of $14,631,376 for its
proportionate share of the net pension liability related to its participation in ERSRI. The net pension
liability was measured as of June 30, 2021 the measurement date, and the total pension liability used to
calculate the net pension liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2020 rolled
forward to June 30, 2021 measurement date. NBC’s proportion of the net pension liability was based on
its share of contributions to the ERSRI for FY 2021 relative to the total contributions of all participating
employers for that fiscal year. At the June 30, 2021, measurement date, NBC’s proportion was
0.82265941%.

For the year ended June 30, 2022, NBC recognized pension expense of $824,981. At June 30, 2022, NBC

reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions from the
following sources:

50



Deferred Outflows

Deferred Inflows of

of Resources Resources

Changes in assumptions S 67,435 S 279,760
Contributions paid subsequent to measurement date 1,731,185 -
Difference between expected and actual experience 101,300 10,986
Changes in proportions and differences between employer

contributions and proportionate share of contributions 784,395 806,468
Net difference between projected and actual investment

earnings - 2,661,834
Total $ 2,684,315 S 3,759,048

NBC's contributions of $1,731,185 are reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from the NBC’s contribution in FY 2022 subsequent to the measurement date and will be
recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the subsequent period. Other amounts reported
as deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized
in the pension expense as follows:

Year ended Net Deferred Outflows
June 30, (Inflows) of Resources
2023 $ (764,616)
2024 (710,344)
2025 (730,336)
2026 (628,647)
2027 28,025
Thereafter -
Total $ (2,805,918)

Actuarial methods and assumptions - The total pension liability was determined using the following
actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the measurement:

Actuarial Cost Method
Amortization Method

Entry Age Actuarial Cost
Level Percent of Payroll - Closed

Inflation 2.50%
Salary increases 3.25% 10 6.25%
Investment rate of return 7.00%

Mortality rates were based on the Variants of the PUB (10) Table for Healthy and Disabled Retirees,
projected with Scale Ultimate MP16.

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2020 valuation rolled forward to June 30, 2021 and the

calculation of the total pension liability as of June 30, 2021 (measurement date) were consistent with the
results of an actuarial experience investigation study performed as of June 30, 2019.
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The long-term expected rate of return best-estimate on pension plan investments was determined by the
actuary using a building-block method. The actuary started by calculating best-estimate future expected
real rates of return (expected returns net of pension plan investment expense and inflation) for each
major asset class, based on collective summary of capital market expectations from 39 sources. These
return assumptions are then weighted by the target asset allocation percentage, factoring in correlation
effects, to develop the overall long-term expected rate of return best-estimate on an arithmetic basis.

The June 30, 2021 expected arithmetic returns over the long-term (20 years) by asset class are
summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Long-Term
Asset Class Target Asset 3 Expect.ed
. Arithmetic Real
Allocation
Rate of Return
GROWTH
Global Equity
US Equity 23.20% 5.83%
International Developed Equity 11.80% 6.35%
Emerging Markets Equity 5.00% 8.04%
Sub-total 40.00%
Private Growth
Private Equity 11.25% 9.47%
Non-Core Real Estate 2.25% 5.32%
Opportunistic Private Credit 1.50% 9.47%
Sub-total 15.00%
INCOME
High Yield Infrastructure 1.00% 3.19%
REITS 1.00% 5.32%
Equity Options 2.00% 5.59%
EMD (50/50 Blend) 2.00% 1.96%
Liquid Credit 2.80% 3.19%
Private Credit 3.20% 3.19%
Sub-total 12.00%
STABILITY
Crisis Protection Class
Treasury Duration 5.00% (0.32%)
Systematic Trend 5.00% 3.39%
Sub-total 10.00%
Inflation Protection
Core Real Estate 3.60% 5.32%
Private Infrastructure 2.40% 5.81%
TIPs 2.00% 0.30%
Sub-total 8.00%
Volatility Protection
|G Corp Credit 3.25% 1.14%
Securitized Credit 3.25% 1.14%
Absolute Return 6.50% 3.39%
Cash 2.00% (0.32%)
Sub-total 15.00%
Total 100.00%
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These return assumptions are then weighted by the target asset allocation percentage, factoring in
correlation effects, to develop the overall long-term expected rate of return best-estimate on an
arithmetic basis.

Discount rate - The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 7.0%. The projection of
cash flows used to determine the discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be
made at the current contribution rate and that contributions from the employers will be made at
statutorily required rates, actuarially determined.

Based on those assumptions, the pension plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to
make all projected future benefit payments of current plan members. Therefore, the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to
determine the total pension liability.

Sensitivity of the net pension liability to changes in the discount rate - The following presents the net
pension liability calculated using the discount rate of 7.0% as well as what the net pension liability would
be if it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage-point lower or 1-percentage-point higher
than the current rate.

Net Pension Liability

1% Decrease Current Discount 1% Increase
(6.0% Discount Rate) Rate (7.0%) (8.0% Discount Rate)
NBC's Net Pension Liability S 18,141,568 S 14,631,376 S 10,151,526

Pension plan fiduciary net position — As noted earlier, ERSRI issues a publicly available financial report
that includes financial statements and required supplementary information for the plans. This report may
be obtained at http://www.ersri.org.This report contains detailed information about the pension plan’s
fiduciary net position.

ERSRI Defined Contribution Plan

Plan description — Certain employees participating in the defined benefit plan (those with less than 20
years of service as of 7/1/2012), as described above, also participate in a defined contribution plan of the
Employees' Retirement System as authorized by General Law Chapter 36-10.3. The defined contribution
plan is established under IRS section 401(a) and is administered by TIAA-CREF. The Retirement Board is
the plan administrator and plan trustee. The employees may choose among various investment options
available to plan participants. The State Investment Commission is responsible for implementing the
investment policy of the plan and selecting the investment options available to members.

Plan contribution — Employees (those with less than 20 years of service as of July 1, 2012) contribute 5%
of their annual covered salary and employers contribute at the following percentages of annual covered
salary for these employees based on their years of service as of July 1, 2012:

Years of Service as Employer
of July 1, 2012 Contribution Rate
15-20Years 1.50%
10-15Years 1.25%
0-10Years 1.00%
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Employee contributions are immediately vested while employer contributions are vested after three years
of contributory service. Contributions required under the plan by both the employee and employer are
established by the General Laws of the State of Rhode Island, which are subject to amendment by the
General Assembly.

NBC contributed and recognized a pension expense of $56,130 for the FY 2022 equal to 100% of the
required contributions for the fiscal year.

Plan vesting and contribution forfeiture provisions - The total amount contributed by the member,
including associated investment gains and losses, shall immediately vest in the member's account and is
non-forfeitable. The total amount contributed by the employer, including associated investment gains
and losses, vests with the member and is non-forfeitable upon completion of three (3) years of
contributory service. Non-vested employer contributions are forfeited upon termination of employment.
Such forfeitures can be used by employers to offset future remittances to the plan.

Retirement benefits - Benefits may be paid to a member after severance from employment, death, plan
termination, or upon a deemed severance from employment for participants performing qualified military
service. At a minimum, retirement benefits must begin no later than April 1st of the calendar year
following the year in which the member attains age 70% or terminates employment, if later.

The ERSRI issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary information for plans administered by the system. The report may be obtained at
http://www.ersri.org.

11 — NON-UNION PENSION PLANS

Non-Union Defined Contribution Plan

NBC's Board approved a resolution at the regular business meeting on May 15, 2002, adopting the Non-
Union Defined Contribution Plan, which is a profit-sharing plan for its non-union employees pursuant to
401(a) of the Internal Revenue Code. The profit-sharing plan is a defined contribution, single employer
pension plan. As of June 30, 2022, there w